
IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS 

MARSHALL DIVISION 
 
ACTIVE WIRELESS TECHNOLOGIES 
LLC, 
 

Plaintiff, 
 

v. 
 
VERIZON COMMUNICATIONS, INC. and 
CELLCO PARTNERSHIP D/B/A 
VERIZON WIRELESS 
 

Defendants. 

§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 

 
Case No.  
 
JURY TRIAL DEMANDED 
 

 

COMPLAINT FOR PATENT INFRINGEMENT 

 Plaintiff Active Wireless Technologies LLC (“AWT” or “Plaintiff”) files this original 

Complaint against Defendants Verizon Communications, Inc. and Cellco Partnership d/b/a 

Verizon Wireless (collectively, “Verizon” or “Defendants”), for patent infringement under 35 

U.S.C. § 271 and alleges as follows: 

THE PARTIES 

1. AWT is a limited liability company, organized and existing under the laws of the 

State of Texas, with its principal place of business located at 104 East Houston Street, Suite 140, 

Marshall, Texas 75670. 

2. Defendant Verizon Communications, Inc. is a Delaware corporation with a 

principal place of business at 1095 Avenue of the Americas, New York, NY 10036. Verizon 

Communications, Inc. can be served at its registered agent for service: The Corporation Trust 

Company, Corporation Trust Center, 1209 Orange Street, Wilmington, Delaware 19801. Upon 

information and belief, Verizon Communications, Inc. does business in Texas, directly or through 
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intermediaries, and offers its products and/or services, including those accused herein of 

infringement, to customers and potential customers located in Texas, including in the judicial Eastern 

District of Texas.  

3. Defendant Cellco Partnership d/b/a Verizon Wireless is a general partnership 

organized and existing under the laws of the State of Delaware, with a principal place of business 

at 1 Verizon Way, Basking Ridge, NJ 07920. Verizon Wireless can be served at its registered agent 

for service: The Corporation Trust Company at Corporation Trust Center 1209 Orange Street, 

Wilmington, DE. Upon information and belief, Verizon USA, Inc. does business in Texas, directly 

or through intermediaries, and offers its products and/or services, including those accused herein 

of infringement, to customers and potential customers located in Texas, including in the judicial 

Eastern District of Texas.  

JURISDICTION 

4. This is an action for patent infringement arising under the patent laws of the United 

States, 35 U.S.C. §§ 1, et seq. This Court has jurisdiction over this action pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 

§§ 1331, 1332, 1338, and 1367.  

5. This Court has personal jurisdiction over Verizon in this action because Verizon 

has committed acts within the Eastern District of Texas giving rise to this action and has 

established minimum contacts with this forum such that the exercise of jurisdiction over Verizon 

would not offend traditional notions of fair play and substantial justice. Verizon conducts business 

and has committed acts of patent infringement and/or has induced acts of patent infringement by 

others in this Judicial District and/or has contributed to patent infringement by others in this 

Judicial District, the State of Texas, and elsewhere in the United States by, among other things, 

offering to sell and selling products and/or services that infringe the Patents-in-Suit.  
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6. Venue is proper in this Judicial District pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1391 and 1400(b). 

Verizon is registered to do business in Texas and, upon information and belief, Verizon has 

transacted business in the Eastern District of Texas and has committed acts of direct and indirect 

infringement in the Eastern District of Texas.  Verizon has regular and established places of 

business in this Judicial District, including at least 1111 E Grand Avenue, Marshall, TX 75670; 

500 East Loop 281, Longview, TX 75605; 2400 South Jefferson Avenue, Mount Pleasant, TX 

75455; 1006 East End Boulevard North, Suite A, Marshall, Texas 75670; 741 North Central 

Expressway, Plano, Texas 75075; 2330 Preston Road, Suite 500, Frisco, Texas 75034; 3220 East 

Hebron Parkway, Suite 114, Carrollton, Texas 75010; 5020 State Highway 121, The Colony, 

Texas 75056; and 204 Central Expressway South, Suite 40, Allen, Texas 75013; 1271 West 

Exchange Pkwy, Allen, TX, 75013; 190 East Stacy Road, Allen, TX, 75002; 8049 Preston Road, 

Frisco, TX, 75034; 2035 North Central Expressway, Suite 620, McKinney, TX 75070; 3610 West 

University Drive, McKinney, TX, 75071; 1016 West SW Loop 323, Tyler, Texas 75701; 8988 

South Broadway Avenue, Suite 110, Tyler, TX 75703; 6874 South Broadway Avenue, Tyler, TX 

75703; 2818 West University Drive, Denton, TX 76201; 1805 South Loop 288, Denton, TX 

76205; 3113 North US Highway 75, Sherman, TX 75090; 380 Shannon Road East, Sulphur 

Springs, Texas 75482; and 218 East FM 544, Murphy, TX, 75094.   

7. Verizon operates and sells access to a mobile network that provides 

telecommunication, Internet service, and other services to customers via cellular base stations 

located in this District and throughout the United States, in infringement of the asserted patents. 

Verizon’s network coverage extends to cities in this District, including within the Marshall 

division, according to Verizon’s website.  
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8. In other recent actions, Verizon has either sought out, admitted, or not contested 

that this federal judicial district is a proper venue for patent infringement actions against it. See, 

e.g., Agreed Joint Motion to Transfer Severed Action to the Eastern District of Texas, Dali 

Wireless, Inc. v. Cellco Partnership d/b/a Verizon Wireless, Case No. 6:22-cv-00104-ADA (W.D. 

Texas); General Access Solutions, Ltd. v. Cellco Partnership d/b/a Verizon Wireless et al., Case 

No. 2:22-cv-00394 (E.D. Tex.); Howlink Global LLC v. Verizon Communications Inc. et al., Case 

No. 2-22-cv-00042 (E.D. Tex.); Finesse Wireless LLC v. Cellco Partnership d/b/a Verizon 

Wireless, Case No. 2-21-cv-00317 (E.D. Tex.); Verizon’s Answer and Counterclaims (Dkt. No. 

20), Cobblestone Wireless, LLC v. T-Mobile USA, Inc., T-Mobile US Inc., Case No. 2:22-cv-

00477-JRG-RSP (Lead Case), Cobblestone Wireless, LLC v. Cellco Partnership d/b/a Verizon 

Wireless, Case No. 2:22- cv-00478-JRG-RSP (Member Case). 

PATENTS-IN-SUIT 

9. On January 7, 2020, the United States Patent and Trademark Office duly and legally 

issued U.S. Patent No. 10,531,443 (the “’443 Patent”) entitled “Physical Uplink Control Channel 

(PUCCH) Format Adaptation for 5th Generation (5G) New Radio (NR).” A true and correct copy 

of the ’443 Patent is attached as Exhibit 1. 

10. On May 25, 2021, the United States Patent and Trademark Office duly and legally 

issued U.S. Patent No. 11,019,557 (the “’557 Patent”) entitled “Apparatus and Method for 

Acquisition of Periodically Broadcasted System Information in Wireless Communication.” A true 

and correct copy of the ’557 Patent is attached as Exhibit 2. 

11. On September 22, 2020, the United States Patent and Trademark Office duly and 

legally issued U.S. Patent No. 10,785,764 (the “’764 Patent”) entitled “Information Change 
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Transmission Method and Device for Single-Cell Multicast Service.” A true and correct copy of 

the ’764 Patent is attached as Exhibit 3. 

12. On March 24, 2020, the United States Patent and Trademark Office duly and legally 

issued U.S. Patent No. 10,601,566 (the “’566 Patent”) entitled “Multiple Slot Long Physical 

Uplink Control Channel (PUCCH) Design for 5th Generation (5G) New Radio (NR).” A true and 

correct copy of the ’566 Patent is attached as Exhibit 4. 

13. AWT is the sole and exclusive owner of all right, title, and interest in the ’443 

Patent, the ’557 Patent, the ’764 Patent, and the ’566 Patent (collectively, the “Patents-in-Suit”) 

and holds the exclusive right to take all actions necessary to enforce its rights to the Patents-in-

Suit, including the filing of this patent infringement lawsuit. AWT also has the right to recover all 

damages for past, present, and future infringement of the Patents-in-Suit.  

THE INFRINGING INSTRUMENTALITIES 

14. Verizon operates cellular wireless networks employing several wireless 

communication technologies including, but not limited to, 5G and NB-IoT technologies. Verizon 

also sells and offers for sale a variety of devices that make use of these same wireless 

communication technologies.  

15. For its wireless communication technologies, Verizon generally advertises its plans 

to enter the market and deploy related cellular wireless networks, and associated equipment and 

services. For example, in May of 2019, Verizon “launch[ed] its Narrowband IoT Network 

nationwide.” See, e.g., Exhibit 5, available at https://www.verizon.com/about/news/verizon-

extends-iot-leadership.  

16. Similarly, in October 2018, Verizon announced that “Verizon turns on world’s first 

5G network” and that a “Houston resident is first 5G customer on the globe.” See, e.g., Exhibit 6, 
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available at https://www.verizon.com/about/news/verizon-turns-worlds-first-5g-network. This 

announcement followed an early announcement by Verizon that “5G is here” and that “the world’s 

first commercial 5G service, Verizon 5G Home, launches on Oct. 1.” See, e.g., Exhibit 7, 

https://www.verizon.com/about/news/5g-here. 

17. Upon information and belief, Verizon owns, leases, maintains, and/or operates 

cellular base stations in this District that provide at least NB-IoT and 5G data services to Verizon 

customers in this District, including numerous cell tower locations in Tyler, Texas; Longview, 

Texas; and Marshall, Texas. Verizon offers at least NB-IoT and 5G data coverage to customers in 

this District and within the Marshall division. According to its website, Verizon also offers and 

provides at least NB-IoT and 5G services and equipment to customers in this District. 

 

Exhibit 8, available at https://thingspace.verizon.com/documentation/get-started/global-coverage-

map.html 
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Exhibit 9, available at https://www.verizon.com/coverage-map/  

18. The products accused of infringing the Patents-in-Suit include, but are not limited 

to, at least Defendants’ NB-IoT cellular stations, 5G cellular base stations (including 5G and 5G 

Ultra Wideband base stations), 5G hardware, software, radio units, and baseband units, and 

associated equipment, services, and platforms (e.g., Verizon Connect, ThingSpace) (collectively, 

the “Accused Products”).  

19. Upon information and belief, each of these Accused Products is 3GPP-compliant.  

COUNT I 
(Infringement of the ’443 Patent) 

 
20. Paragraphs 1 through 19 are incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein. 

21. AWT has not licensed or otherwise authorized Defendants to make, use, offer for 

sale, sell, or import any products that embody the inventions of the ’443 Patent. 
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22. Defendants have and continue to directly infringe the ’443 Patent, either literally or 

under the doctrine of equivalents, without authority and in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271, by making, 

using, offering to sell, selling, and/or importing into the United States products that satisfy each 

and every limitation of one or more claims of the ’443 Patent. Such products include at least the 

Accused Products.  

23. For example, upon information and belief, Defendants have and continue to directly 

infringe at least claim 3 of the ’443 Patent by making, using, offering to sell, selling, and/or 

importing into the United States products and services that operate with at least phones, tablets, 

and hotspot devices that implement 3GPP standards (e.g., 3GPP TS 38.213 V15.14.0), such as the 

Accused Products which include a base station (gNB), comprising: sending circuitry configured 

to send a physical downlink shared channel (PDSCH) that includes code block groups (CBGs) of 

a transport block; and receiving circuitry configured to receive CBG-based HARQ-ACK, wherein 

for the CBG-based HARQ-ACK corresponding to the PDSCH which is scheduled in a common 

search space (CSS), the receiving circuitry is configured to receive one HARQ-ACK bit for the 

transport block, for the CBG-based HARQ-ACK corresponding to the PDSCH which is scheduled 

in a UE-specific search space (USS), the receiving circuitry is configured to receive HARQ-ACK 

bits of all CBGs. 

24. For example, upon information and belief, each Accused Product comprises a base 

station compliant with the 3GPP TS 38.213 V15.14.0 standard.  
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Exhibit 13, available at https://www.3gpp.org/news-events/3gpp-news/industry-pr-5g 

25. By way of example, each Accused Product comprises sending circuitry configured 

to send a physical downlink shared channel (PDSCH) that includes code block groups (CBGs) of 

a transport block and receiving circuitry configured to receive CBG-based HARQ-ACK. 

 

Exhibit 14 (“3GPP TS 38.213 version 15.14.0 Release 15”), at 40-41, available at 
https://www.etsi.org/deliver/etsi_ts/138200_138299/138213/15.14.00_60/ts_138213v151400p.p
df 

26. By further way of example, each Accused Product comprises receiving circuitry 

configured to receive one HARQ-ACK bit for the transport block for the CBG-based HARQ-ACK 

corresponding to the PDSCH which is scheduled in a common search space (CSS). 

c 
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Id. at 40. 

 

Id. at 41. 

 

Id. at 44. 

 

 

 

 

c 
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Id. at 78-79. 

27. By further way of example, each Accused Product comprises receiving circuitry 

configured to receive HARQ-ACK bits of all CBG for the CBG-based HARQ-ACK corresponding 

to the PDSCH which is scheduled in a UE-specific search space (USS).  

c 
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Id. at 40. 

 

Id. at 46. 
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Id. at 78-79. 

28. Verizon has indirectly infringed and continues to indirectly infringe one or more 

claims of the ’443 Patent, as provided by 35 U.S.C. § 271(b), by inducing infringement by others, 

such as Verizon’s partners, customers, clients, and end-users, in this District and elsewhere in the 

United States. For example, Verizon’s partners, customers, clients, and end-users directly infringe, 

either literally or under the doctrine of equivalents, through their use of the inventions claimed in 

the ’443 Patent. Verizon induces this direct infringement through its affirmative acts of 

manufacturing, selling, distributing, and/or otherwise making available the Accused Products, and 

c 

c 
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providing instructions, documentation, and other information to partners, customers, clients, and 

end-users suggesting that they use the Accused Products in an infringing manner, including 

technical support, marketing, product manuals, advertisements, and online documentation related 

to the Accused Products. Because of Verizon’s inducement, Verizon’s partners, customers, clients, 

and end-users use the Accused Products in a way Verizon intends and they directly infringe the 

’443 Patent. Verizon performs these affirmative acts with knowledge of the ’443 Patent and with 

the intent, or willful blindness, that the induced acts directly infringe the ’443 Patent. 

29. Verizon has indirectly infringed and continues to indirectly infringe one or more 

claims of the ’443 Patent, as provided by 35 U.S.C. § 271(c), by contributing to direct infringement 

by others, such as partners, customers, clients, and end-users, in this District and elsewhere in the 

United States. Verizon’s affirmative acts of selling and offering to sell the Accused Products in 

this District and elsewhere in the United States and causing the Accused Products to be 

manufactured, used, sold, and offered for sale contribute to others’ use and manufacture of the 

Accused Products such that the ’443 Patent is directly infringed by others. The accused 

components within the Accused Products are material to the invention of the ’443 Patent, are not 

staple articles or commodities of commerce, have no substantial non-infringing uses, and are 

known by Verizon to be especially made or adapted for use in the infringement of the ’443 Patent. 

Verizon performs these affirmative acts with knowledge of the ’443 Patent and with intent, or 

willful blindness, that they cause the direct infringement of the ’443 Patent.  

30. AWT has suffered damages as a result of Defendants’ direct and indirect 

infringement of the ’443 Patent in an amount to be proved at trial. 

COUNT II 
(Infringement of the ’557 Patent) 

 
31. Paragraphs 1 through 19 are incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein. 
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32. AWT has not licensed or otherwise authorized Defendants to make, use, offer for 

sale, sell, or import any products that embody the inventions of the ’557 Patent. 

33. Defendants have and continue to directly infringe the ’557 Patent, either literally or 

under the doctrine of equivalents, without authority and in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271, by making, 

using, offering to sell, selling, and/or importing into the United States products that satisfy each 

and every limitation of one or more claims of the ’557 Patent. Such products include at least the 

Accused Products.  

34. For example, Defendants have and continue to directly infringe at least claim 9 of 

the ’557 Patent by making, using, offering to sell, selling, and/or importing into the United States 

products and services that operate with at least phones, tablets, and hotspot devices that implement 

3GPP standards  (e.g., 3GPP TS 38.331 version 15.13.0 Release 15), such as the Accused Products, 

which include a base station apparatus of a radio access network (RAN) that communicates over 

a radio interface with a user equipment, the base station apparatus comprising: transmitting 

circuitry configured to transmit a first type system information block (SIB), the first type SIB 

comprising: scheduling information of a system information (SI) message, the SI message 

comprising at least one second type SIB, the scheduling information configuring SI windows, the 

SI windows comprising periodically occurring time windows in which the SI message is 

transmitted; a parameter associated with a condition for determination of a failure of an SI message 

acquisition process; and an indication of broadcast status for the SI message, the indication 

indicating broadcasting; and processor circuitry configured to cause the transmitting circuitry to 

broadcast the SI message; wherein: the first type SIB is re-acquired by the user equipment upon 

the user equipment failing on the SI message acquisition process in at least one of the SI windows 
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to receive the SI message, the base station apparatus is a current serving access node of the user 

equipment. 

35. For example, upon information and belief, each Accused Product comprises a base 

station apparatus of a radio access network (RAN) that communicates over a radio interface with 

a user equipment and is a current serving access node of the user equipment, which is compliant 

with the 3GPP TS 38.331 V15.13.0 standard.  

 

Exhibit 13, available at https://www.3gpp.org/news-events/3gpp-news/industry-pr-5g 

36. By way of example, each Accused Product comprises transmitting circuitry 

configured to transmit a first type system information block (SIB) comprising scheduling 

information of a system information (SI) message, the SI message comprising at least one second 

type SIB, the scheduling information configuring SI windows, the SI windows comprising 

periodically occurring time windows in which the SI message is transmitted. 

 

Case 2:23-cv-00620   Document 1   Filed 12/20/23   Page 16 of 39 PageID #:  16



17 

 

Exhibit 15 (“3GPP TS 38.331 version 15.13.0 Release 15”), at 25-26, available at 
https://www.etsi.org/deliver/etsi_ts/138300_138399/138331/15.13.00_60/ts_138331v151300p.p
df 

 

Id. at 28. 

 

 

 
 

 
 

c 

 

Case 2:23-cv-00620   Document 1   Filed 12/20/23   Page 17 of 39 PageID #:  17



18 

 

 

Id. at 31-32. 

 

 

 

Id. at 167-169. 

c 
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Id. at 363-64. 

37. By further way of example, in each of the Accused Products, a parameter associated 

with a condition for determination of a failure of an SI message acquisition process. 

 

 

 
 

 
 

c 
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Id. at 27. 

38. By further way of example, each Accused Product comprises an indication of 

broadcast status for the SI message, the indication indicating broadcasting. 

 

 

Id. at 31-32. 

 

 

Id. at 363-64. 

39. By further way of example, each Accused Product comprises processor circuitry 

configured to cause the transmitting circuitry to broadcast the SI message. 

 

c 

 

c 
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Id. at 31-32. 

 

Id. at 26. 

40. By further way of example, in the Accused Products, the first type SIB is re-

acquired by the user equipment upon the user equipment failing on the SI message acquisition 

process in at least one of the SI windows to receive the SI message. 

 

Id. at 27. 

41. Verizon has indirectly infringed and continues to indirectly infringe one or more 

claims of the ’557 Patent, as provided by 35 U.S.C. § 271(b), by inducing infringement by others, 

such as Verizon’s partners, customers, clients, and end-users, in this District and elsewhere in the 

United States. For example, Verizon’s partners, customers, clients, and end-users directly infringe, 

either literally or under the doctrine of equivalents, through their use of the inventions claimed in 

 

c 

 
 

c 
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the ’557 Patent. Verizon induces this direct infringement through its affirmative acts of 

manufacturing, selling, distributing, and/or otherwise making available the Accused Products, and 

providing instructions, documentation, and other information to partners, customers, clients, and 

end-users suggesting that they use the Accused Products in an infringing manner, including 

technical support, marketing, product manuals, advertisements, and online documentation related 

to the Accused Products. Because of Verizon’s inducement, Verizon’s partners, customers, clients, 

and end-users use the Accused Products in a way Verizon intends and they directly infringe the 

’557 Patent. Verizon performs these affirmative acts with knowledge of the ’557 Patent and with 

the intent, or willful blindness, that the induced acts directly infringe the ’557 Patent. 

42. Verizon has indirectly infringed and continues to indirectly infringe one or more 

claims of the ’557 Patent, as provided by 35 U.S.C. § 271(c), by contributing to direct infringement 

by others, such as partners, customers, clients, and end-users, in this District and elsewhere in the 

United States. Verizon’s affirmative acts of selling and offering to sell the Accused Products in 

this District and elsewhere in the United States and causing the Accused Products to be 

manufactured, used, sold, and offered for sale contribute to others’ use and manufacture of the 

Accused Products such that the ’557 Patent is directly infringed by others. The accused 

components within the Accused Products are material to the invention of the ’557 Patent, are not 

staple articles or commodities of commerce, have no substantial non-infringing uses, and are 

known by Verizon to be especially made or adapted for use in the infringement of the ’557 Patent. 

Verizon performs these affirmative acts with knowledge of the ’557 Patent and with intent, or 

willful blindness, that they cause the direct infringement of the ’557 Patent.  

43. AWT has suffered damages as a result of Defendants’ direct and indirect 

infringement of the ’557 Patent in an amount to be proved at trial. 
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COUNT III 
(Infringement of the ’764 Patent) 

 
44. Paragraphs 1 through 19 are incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein. 

45. AWT has not licensed or otherwise authorized Defendants to make, use, offer for 

sale, sell, or import any products that embody the inventions of the ’764 Patent. 

46. Defendants have and continue to directly infringe the ’764 Patent, either literally or 

under the doctrine of equivalents, without authority and in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271, by making, 

using, offering to sell, selling, and/or importing into the United States products that satisfy each 

and every limitation of one or more claims of the ’764 Patent. Such products include at least the 

Accused Products.  

47. For example, Defendants have and continue to directly infringe at least claim 3 of 

the ’764 Patent by making, using, offering to sell, selling, and/or importing into the United States 

products and services that operate with at least smart meters, industrial sensors, fleet management 

solutions, asset trackers, security cameras, and agricultural monitors that implement 3GPP 

standards (e.g., 3GPP TS 36.331 V14.16.0, TS 36.213 V14.17.0 and TS 36.212 version 14.16.0), 

such as the Accused Products, which include a base station comprising: transmitting circuitry 

configured to transmit Single-Cell Multicast Control Channel (SC-MCCH) information; and 

generating circuitry configured to generate a second downlink control information (DCI) format 

indicating an SC-MCCH information change notification, wherein the transmitting circuitry is 

configured to transmit, in more than one second subframe, the second DCI format carried on a 

second narrowband physical downlink control channel (NPDCCH), the generating circuitry 

configured to generate a first DCI format indicating a resource for a transmission of another SC-

MCCH information, the transmitting circuitry is configured to transmit, in more than one first 

subframe, the first DCI format carried on a first NPDDCH, a period of the more than one first 
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subframe is different from a period of the more than one second subframe, and the transmitting 

circuitry is configured to transmit the another SC-MCCH information with use of the resource 

indicated by the first DCI format and in accordance with the second DCI format.  

48. For example, upon information and belief, the Accused Products include a base 

station compliant with the 3GPP TS 36.331 V14.16.0, TS 36.213 V14.17.0 and TS 36.212 version 

14.16.0 standards.  

 

 

Exhibit 11, available at https://www.ericsson.com/4ac64d/assets/local/reports-
papers/5g/doc/gsma-5g-mobile-iot.pdf, p. 2-3 
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Exhibit 12, available at https://www.verizon.com/business/products/internet-of-things/connected-
assets/lte-category-m1-narrow-band-technologies/  

 

Exhibit 13, available at 
https://opendevelopment.verizonwireless.com/news/article/Verizon_Narrowband_Internet_of_T
hings 
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49. By way of example, each Accused Product comprises a base station with 

transmitting circuitry configured to transmit Single-Cell Multicast Control Channel (SC-MCCH) 

information. 

 

Exhibit 16 (“3GPP TS 36.331 version 14.16.0 Release 14”), at 209-210, available at 
https://www.etsi.org/deliver/etsi_ts/136300_136399/136331/14.16.00_60/ts_136331v141600p. 
pdf 

50. By further way of example, each Accused Product comprises generating circuitry 

configured to generate a second downlink control information (DCI) format indicating an SC-

MCCH information change notification. 
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Exhibit 17 (“3GPP TS 36.212 version 14.16.0 Release 14”), at 199, available at 
https://www.etsi.org/deliver/etsi_ts/136200_136299/136212/14.16.00_60/ts_136212v141600p. 
pdf 

51. By further way of example, each Accused Product comprises transmitting circuitry 

configured to transmit, in more than one second subframe, the second DCI format carried on a 

second narrowband physical downlink control channel (NPDCCH). 

 

 

 

 

c 

 

c 
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Exhibit 18 (“3GPP TS 36.213 version 14.17.0 Release 14”), at 441, available at 
https://www.etsi.org/deliver/etsi_ts/136200_136299/136213/14.17.00_60/ts_136213v141700p. 
pdf 

52. By further way of example, each Accused Product comprises generating circuitry 

configured to generate a first DCI format indicating a resource for a transmission of another SC-

MCCH information. 

 

Exhibit 17, at 199. 

 

Exhibit 16, at 209. 

c 

c 
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53. By further way of example, each Accused Product comprises transmitting circuitry 

configured to transmit, in more than one first subframe, the first DCI format carried on a first 

NPDDCH. 

 

Exhibit 18, at 441.  

54. By further way of example, in the Accused Products, a period of the more than one 

first subframe is different from a period of the more than one second subframe. 

 

  

c 
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Exhibit 16, at 209-210. 

 

 

Id. at 202-203. 

55. By further way of example, each Accused Product comprises transmitting circuitry 

configured to transmit the another SC-MCCH information with use of the resource indicated by 

the first DCI format and in accordance with the second DCI format. 

 

c 

c 
 

c 
 

c 
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Exhibit 17, at 199-200. 

 

Id., at 199. 

c 

c 
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56. Verizon has indirectly infringed and continues to indirectly infringe one or more 

claims of the ’764 Patent, as provided by 35 U.S.C. § 271(b), by inducing infringement by others, 

such as Verizon’s partners, customers, clients, and end-users, in this District and elsewhere in the 

United States. For example, Verizon’s partners, customers, clients, and end-users directly infringe, 

either literally or under the doctrine of equivalents, through their use of the inventions claimed in 

the ’764 Patent. Verizon induces this direct infringement through its affirmative acts of 

manufacturing, selling, distributing, and/or otherwise making available the Accused Products, and 

providing instructions, documentation, and other information to partners, customers, clients, and 

end-users suggesting that they use the Accused Products in an infringing manner, including 

technical support, marketing, product manuals, advertisements, and online documentation related 

to the Accused Products. Because of Verizon’s inducement, Verizon’s partners, customers, clients, 

and end-users use the Accused Products in a way Verizon intends and they directly infringe the 

’764 Patent. Verizon performs these affirmative acts with knowledge of the ’764 Patent and with 

the intent, or willful blindness, that the induced acts directly infringe the ’764 Patent. 

57. Verizon has indirectly infringed and continues to indirectly infringe one or more 

claims of the ’764 Patent, as provided by 35 U.S.C. § 271(c), by contributing to direct infringement 

by others, such as partners, customers, clients, and end-users, in this District and elsewhere in the 

United States. Verizon’s affirmative acts of selling and offering to sell the Accused Products in 

this District and elsewhere in the United States and causing the Accused Products to be 

manufactured, used, sold, and offered for sale contribute to others’ use and manufacture of the 

Accused Products such that the ’764 Patent is directly infringed by others. The accused 

components within the Accused Products are material to the invention of the ’764 Patent, are not 

staple articles or commodities of commerce, have no substantial non-infringing uses, and are 
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known by Verizon to be especially made or adapted for use in the infringement of the ’764 Patent. 

Verizon performs these affirmative acts with knowledge of the ’764 Patent and with intent, or 

willful blindness, that they cause the direct infringement of the ’764 Patent.  

58. AWT has suffered damages as a result of Defendants’ direct and indirect 

infringement of the ’764 Patent in an amount to be proved at trial. 

COUNT IV 
(Infringement of the ’566 Patent) 

 
59. Paragraphs 1 through 19 are incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein. 

60. AWT has not licensed or otherwise authorized Defendants to make, use, offer for 

sale, sell, or import any products that embody the inventions of the ’566 Patent. 

61. Defendants have and continue to directly infringe the ’566 Patent, either literally or 

under the doctrine of equivalents, without authority and in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271, by making, 

using, offering to sell, selling, and/or importing into the United States products that satisfy each 

and every limitation of one or more claims of the ’566 Patent. Such products include at least the 

Accused Products.  

62. For example, Defendants have and continue to directly infringe at least claim 8 of 

the ’566 Patent by making, using, offering to sell, selling, and/or importing into the United States 

products and services that operate with at least phones, tablets, and hotspot devices that implement 

3GPP standards (e.g., 3GPP TS 38.213 V15.14.0 and TS 38.331 V15.13.0), such as the Accused 

Products, which include a base station (gNB) comprising: a processor; and memory in electronic 

communication with the processor, wherein instructions stored in the memory are executable to: 

transmit, to a user equipment (UE), a signaling, an uplink control channel (PUCCH) spans over 

multiple slots being determined based on the signaling; and receive uplink control information 

(UCI) with the frequency hopping for the configured multiple slots PUCCH, wherein the number 
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of symbols of the PUCCH is the same in each slot of the multiple slots, and the location of the 

symbols for the PUCCH is the same in the each slot of the multiple slots. 

63. For example, upon information and belief, each Accused Product comprises a base 

station (gNB) comprising a processor and memory in electronic communication with the 

processor, which is compliant with the 3GPP TS 38.213 V15.14.0 and 3GPP TS 38.331 V15.13.0 

standards.  

 

Exhibit 13, available at https://www.3gpp.org/news-events/3gpp-news/industry-pr-5g 

64. By way of example, each Accused Product transmits, to a user equipment (UE), a 

signaling, an uplink control channel (PUCCH) spans over multiple slots being determined based 

on the signaling. 
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Exhibit 14, at 69. 

 

Exhibit 15, at 298. 

65. By further way of example, each Accused Product receives uplink control 

information (UCI) with the frequency hopping for the configured multiple slots PUCCH. 

 

c 
c 

c 
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Exhibit 14, at 69. 

66. By further way of example, in the Accused Products, the number of symbols of the 

PUCCH is the same in each slot of the multiple slots and the location of the symbols for the 

PUCCH is the same in the each slot of the multiple slots. 

c 

c 

c 
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Exhibit 14, at 69. 

67. Verizon has indirectly infringed and continues to indirectly infringe one or more 

claims of the ’566 Patent, as provided by 35 U.S.C. § 271(b), by inducing infringement by others, 

such as Verizon’s partners, customers, clients, and end-users, in this District and elsewhere in the 

United States. For example, Verizon’s partners, customers, clients, and end-users directly infringe, 

either literally or under the doctrine of equivalents, through their use of the inventions claimed in 

the ’566 Patent. Verizon induces this direct infringement through its affirmative acts of 

manufacturing, selling, distributing, and/or otherwise making available the Accused Products, and 

providing instructions, documentation, and other information to partners, customers, clients, and 

c 

c 
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end-users suggesting that they use the Accused Products in an infringing manner, including 

technical support, marketing, product manuals, advertisements, and online documentation related 

to the Accused Products. Because of Verizon’s inducement, Verizon’s partners, customers, clients, 

and end-users use the Accused Products in a way Verizon intends and they directly infringe the 

’566 Patent. Verizon performs these affirmative acts with knowledge of the ’566 Patent and with 

the intent, or willful blindness, that the induced acts directly infringe the ’566 Patent. 

68. Verizon has indirectly infringed and continues to indirectly infringe one or more 

claims of the ’566 Patent, as provided by 35 U.S.C. § 271(c), by contributing to direct infringement 

by others, such as partners, customers, clients, and end-users, in this District and elsewhere in the 

United States. Verizon’s affirmative acts of selling and offering to sell the Accused Products in 

this District and elsewhere in the United States and causing the Accused Products to be 

manufactured, used, sold, and offered for sale contribute to others’ use and manufacture of the 

Accused Products such that the ’566 Patent is directly infringed by others. The accused 

components within the Accused Products are material to the invention of the ’566 Patent, are not 

staple articles or commodities of commerce, have no substantial non-infringing uses, and are 

known by Verizon to be especially made or adapted for use in the infringement of the ’566 Patent. 

Verizon performs these affirmative acts with knowledge of the ’566 Patent and with intent, or 

willful blindness, that they cause the direct infringement of the ’566 Patent.  

69. AWT has suffered damages as a result of Defendants’ direct and indirect 

infringement of the ’566 Patent in an amount to be proved at trial. 

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL 
 

Plaintiff hereby demands a jury for all issues so triable. 
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PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

WHEREFORE, AWT prays for relief against Defendants as follows: 

a. Entry of judgment declaring that Defendants have directly and/or indirectly 

infringed one or more claims of each of the Patents-in-Suit; 

b. An order awarding damages sufficient to compensate AWT for Defendants’ 

infringement of the Patents-in-Suit, but in no event less than a reasonable royalty, together with 

interest and costs; 

c. Entry of judgment declaring that this case is exceptional and awarding AWT its 

costs and reasonable attorney fees under 35 U.S.C. § 285; and 

d. Such other and further relief as the Court deems just and proper. 

 

Dated:  December 20, 2023   Respectfully submitted, 

 /s/ Alfred R. Fabricant                    
Alfred R. Fabricant 
NY Bar No. 2219392 
Email: ffabricant@fabricantllp.com 
Peter Lambrianakos 
NY Bar No. 2894392 
Email: plambrianakos@fabricantllp.com 
Vincent J. Rubino, III 
NY Bar No. 4557435 
Email: vrubino@fabricantllp.com 
FABRICANT LLP 
411 Theodore Fremd Avenue 
Suite 206 South 
Rye, New York 10580 
Telephone: (212) 257-5797 
Facsimile: (212) 257-5796  
 
ATTORNEYS FOR PLAINTIFF 
ACTIVE WIRELESS TECHNOLOGIES LLC 
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